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November 14, 2018

To,
Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

Sub: Listed NCD- Statutory Compliance- Periodical Report for Half vear ended September 30, 2018

Dear Sir,

in continuation with our letter dated 13" November, 2018 and as per the requirements specified in your
letter bearing ref No. CTL/ MUM/Compliance/Half-Yearly/2018-19/1281 dated September 28, 2018 fo

captioned matter, we certify the following for the Half year ended $harch 312018 as follows:
Septevnbey 3o, 200§

We would also like to submit that:

1. Interms of Regulation 52{4):

1. The Audited Financial results for the half year ended 30" September, 2018 are being enclosed,

2. Debt~—Equity Ratio is 3.26 [Equity includes Subordinated Debt)

You are kindly requested to take above on record and issue us “Letter of Noting” at the earliest for the
submission to the Stock Exchange.

Thanking you,

Yours sincerely,

For Fino Finance Private Limited
o~ &

G
Basavraj Loni

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Fino Finance Private Limited
CIN Number; L6592 1MHI1994PTC 21 6496

Registered Office: SK Elite, Plet No D-404 & 405, 05th Floos Turk i ;
Tel: (+91-22) 7737 7000 | mwv.ﬁr";m‘inanm_iE«.5' O3th Fivoen MinC furbhe, Navi Mumbiz, Maharashtra 460705



Fino Finance Private Limited

(Formechy known ax Irepid Finace Aud Leasigy Private Limited)
Statement of profit and loss

Financial resilts for the siv months ended 30 Seprember 2018

(Currency ndian Rupees)

artieutars et ontet vt e the ey T e nted P v v
’ i} i 0 Sepreniber 20018 §) Adeire e 3D
30 September 18 3 Beprembur 17 30 Sepremiber 201 H el 4
{Audited) (Audited}. {(Audited) eAtddeds

incame
Revenue from pperstions 680,340,820 625,800,573 8L 146,820 PRI SR B
Qthar vome - 678,519 - 67831
Total revenue (1) 680,146,520 626,479,092 . GR0, 146,820 1,231 624 547
Expenses
tmployess benofits . 189,990,421 137,115,142 189,990,421 32631267
Finutiwe costs 185,504,873 206,701,275 25,560.54173 ;
Depreciation and amartisation 17,552,581 23,483,404 17,552,581 34G5EN76
Provision for Toan losses aid doubtful debts 28,846,775 161,166,302 28,846,775 [HERSVESE]
Cikier oxpenses 78,979,746 84,169,099 T8ITRT G 197 U7 495
Total expenses {11) 600,954,396 612,733,222 600,934,396 1444,
3 ko i " by " .
‘I rofit 7 (Loss) bofure tax and prior period 79,212,424 13243870 19,212,424 17901 596
items (1) - (§1)
Fax expenses
Cutienm sy 23,475,058 24,759,499 23,475,058 -
Deferred wx {eredit) - {33.403,742) - RIS EN
AT credit entittenient {23,475,058) - (23.475,058) .
‘Total 1ax éxpenses - {8.644,243) - EETSTT
Profis { {(Lass) for the-perind Lyear 79,282,424 21888113 79212424
Earalag per equity share
Busig 118 318 715 T O
Pribused 745 3.18 s (47 0

Notes;

L Fhe Conspany 15 8 Non-lias]icing__i-‘immcc Company - MF] registered with RBL

2. The above ﬁn“a_ncial_r(}'s_u]is for the period ended 30 September 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit Conynittee and approved by the Buard of Diteciors a1 their mevting
hetd.on 14 November 2018,

3. 'Fhe Tingncial resulis for the period ended 30 Septesber 2018 of the Company hase been andited by the-Statutory Auditors of the Company.

4. Earnings per share For the half year ended 30 Seplerber 2018 and the 30 Septentber 2017 have been coleulated for gix months and not annualived.

5. Provious periods £ years figures have been regfouped ! reclussified wherever necessary,

For and i bebalf of the Buavd of Birectors of
Fino Finmaee Private Limited
(Farmerhy knipwn oy bugrepid Finance dnd Leasug, Prv

s Foapetdy

5
pGupty

Huslfodame [orecir

ANy T
P4 Novemhe: MR




ino Firanee Private Limited

fFormerly Knvis s fagrepid Finance And Leastng Private Limited)

Balance sheet
as et 30 Seprember 2018

{Curreacy: Induar Rupees)
Particutars 30 September I8 31 March IR
Lepuity and Habilities

Sharcholhicrs' funds

Share capital 140,768,076 FHDLTGRO70
Reserves and suyplus 826,089,654 246,877,230
236,857,724 £57,645 300

Noge-current Huhilities
Long, o borrowings 2,034,068,810 2,345 150,167
Long tem provisions 30,761,150 25094822
2,864,829,940 2,374,244,989

Current Hahilities
Shor-term borrowings - 471,746 951
Frade puyables |

Dues of micre enterprises and small enlerprises -

Dues of creditors pther than micre enterprises and smudl enerprises 32,570,889 93597414

Oiler conrent habiliiey 2,045,519,058 131517434
Shott term provisions 174,545,029 123,310,907

2,248.634,97¢ 2300172730
Total 5,256.322,060 5.732.063.020
Ausets

Non-current ssseis
Fined assets

Tangible assets 83,723,713 99,396,324
Deterred tax assets (net) 33984248 BRI
Long term louns and advaness 1,1 86,574,397 1296971337
{Hher nen-coryent assets 86,750,006 275,743 637

1,349, 1632,336 1106 089,736

Cureent ussets

Crirenl Investnenis - !

Trade Receivables 22,344,466 41,735,132
Cash and bank balnoees 625,810,792 327,881 764
Short term loens and pdvances 3, 198,90%,071 3418155473
Other current assets 54,225,995 38,000,909

3,901,240,324 4,025,973,284
Tosal §,230,322,664 3.732.063.020

‘The accompanying notes to the aecounts form an integral part of the condensed balance sheet.

For and on Behalf of the Board of Dircctors of
Fino Finance Private Limited
(Formerly known as Intrepd Finemce And Leasing Private Janigted)

Sudeess Gupia
Whote-tthie Erector

Mumba
14 Navember 2018




'S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
5ih Fioor, Lodha Excelus, Telephone +%1 (22) 4345 §300
Apollo Milis Compound Fax +31 (22} 43485 5398
0L M. Joshi Marg, Mahalaxmi
Mumbai - 400 013
india

To the Board of Directors of
Fino Finance Private Limited

(formerly knows as Intrepid Finance and Leasing Private Livitied)

We have audited the financial results of Fino Finance Private Limited (formerly known as
Intrepid Finance and Leasing Private Limited) (‘the. Company?) for the half year ended
30 September 2018 (‘financial results’), attached herewitli, being submitted by the company
pursuant 1o the requirement of Regulation 52 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requireinents) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations™). ‘

These financial results have been prepared on the basis of the condensed interim financial
statements, which are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility isto
express an opinion on these financial results based on our audit of such interim financial
statements, which have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measuremaent
principles laid down in Accounting Standard (*AS?) 25 for ‘interim Financial Reporting”,
preseribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other accounting principles
gencrally accepted in India-and in compliance with Listing Regulations.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in India,
Those standards fequire that we plan and perform the. audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial results are free of material misstatement. An audit inclhudes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting, the amounts disolosed as financial results. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion,

Rased on our audit conducted as above, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
accordingto the explanations given to us, these financial resulis;

(i)  ‘arepresented in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations; and

(i)  -give a true and fair view of the net profit and other financial information for the hail
year ended 30 September 2018,

For B S R & Associates LLP
Chartered Accourntanis
Firm's Registration No: 11623 1W/W-1 00024

ER b

N Sampath Ganesh

Mumbai Pariner
14 November 2018 Membership No: 042554

6§ R B Associates {a portnership fram with Rugisterod Qifice
Registration No. BAGS226} copvaried ko Gth Floor, Lodha Excelug,

B 5 R & Assodlates LLP (a Lisitd Listiliy, Apollo Mills Corapound
Partrarship with ELP Ragisteation o, AABB182) M. M, Joshi borg, Mahataxmi
with effect from Dotobar 14, 20013 Fhumbal - 400 01



Fino
Fino Finance

November 13, 2018
To,

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited

Suby: Listed NCD- Statutory Compliance- Periodical Report for Half year ended September 30, 2018

Dear Sir,

As per the requirements specified in your letter bearing ref No. CTL/MUM/Compliance/Half-
Yearly/2018-19/1281 dated September 28, 2018 for captioned matter, we certify the following for
the Half year ended September, 2018 a5 follows:

We hereby inform you that the meeting of the Board of Directors of the Company is scheduled on
14™ November, 2018 to approve the Audited Financial Results for half year ended 30" September,
2018.

We would also like to submit that:

1. interms of Regulation 52(4):

@) The Audited Financial results for the half year ended 30 September, 2018 are being
presented to the Board of Directors in Board meeting scheduled on 14" November, 2018.
The Financial resuits will be submitted separately after the approval in Board meeting,

b) There is no change in credit rating of the Company which is CRISIL BBB ~ (Stable) and ICRA
BBB- (Stable). The Credit Rating of the debt securities of the Company is detailed in
Annexure 1 separately,

¢} The asset cover available by way of security is sufficient to discharge the claims of Debenture
holders as and when they become due. Certificate from Practicing Chartered Accountant is
submitted along with Quarterly compliance submissions dated 13" November, 2018 for the
period ended 30" September, 2018.

d} Debt equity ratio will be submitted separately along with Half yearly Financial results post
Board meeting.

€} Previous due dates for the payment of interest / repayment of principal of various non-
convertible debt securities lssued by the Company and the payment dates of
Principal/interest are detailed in Annexure A,

f) Next due dates for the payment of interast / repayment of principal of various non-
convertible debt securities issued by the Company are detailed in Annexure 8

g) Debt coverage and interest service coverage ratio are not applicable for us.
h) As per Rules 18 {7)(b)(ii} of the Companies {Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014,

creation of Debenture Redemption Reserve is not applicable to the debentures which are
issued vide private placement. Therefore Annexure C is not applicable to us.

Fino Finance Private Limited \

CIN Number; Us5921MH1994PTC216496 P
Registered Office: SK Elite, Plot No D-404 & 405, 05th Floor, MIDC Turbhe, Navi Mumbai, Maharashira 400705
Tal.: (+91-223 7137 7000 | www.finofinance.in



Fino
Fino Finance

i) Net worth of the Company, Net Profit after tax, Eamings per share will be provided along
with Half yearly Financiaf results post Board meeting.

i) There is no material deviation in the use of proceeds of issue of NCD's from the objects
stated in the offer document in terms of Regulation 52(7)

2. Interms of Regulation 56:
a) The Annual repert of the Company for Financial Year 2017-2018 is enclosed as Annexure D.
The certificate for utilization of funds for implementation of project is not applicable to us.
Further, in the period under review, we have not issued any new listed non- convertible

debentures. The funds received for previously Issued Debentures were fully utilized and also
utilized for the purpose for which these were intended to be raised.

b} The Company bas not issued any new listed non- convertible debentures during the period
under review.

¢} There are no intimations with reference to revision in the rating, default in titnely payment
of interest or redemption or hoth In respect of NCDs and failure to create charge on the
assets.

d) There is no instance and no statement filed for material deviations In the use of proceeds of
issue of NCD from the objects stated in the Offer document.

e) The certificate w.r.t maintenance of asset cover is submitted along with Quarterly
tompliance submissions dated November 13, 2018 for the period ended 30™ September,
2018,
3. In terms of Regulation 58:
The provisions of the above regulation is noted and complied wherever applicable.
4. Insurance of the properties secured for debentures is not applicable to us.
You are kindly requested to take above on record and issue us “Letter of Noting” at the earliest for
the submission to the Stock Exchange.

Thanking you,

Yours sinceiely,
Forkpo Fingnce Private Limited

Basdvraj Loni

Fino Finance Private Limited

CIN Number: UeS921MH1904PTC2 6496

Registered Office: SK Ellte, Plot No D-404 & 405, 05th Floor, MIDC Turbhe, Navi Muimbai, Maharashtra 400705
Tel: (+91-22) 7137 7000 | www.finofinance.in



Fino |
Fino Finance

ANNEXURE - A
Details of redemption & payment of interest during last half year ending September 30, 2018 i.e 1.04.2018
to 30.09,2018:
Series [ Tranche Type Due date of Amount Actual date of
{Principat/ payment {Rs.) Payment
Interest)
Principal Interest
amount amount
INES17Q03016
16.10% —intrepid Interest 29/06/2018 - 10,034,932 | 29/06/2018
Finance and
Leasing Private Interest 2810972018 - 10,034,982 | 28/09/2018
Limited 2021
INES170Q07091
14.30% Intrepid Interest 17/08/2018 - 21,759,350 17/09/2018
Finance and
Leasing Private
Limited 2022
INES17007109
12.00% Intrepid Principal and D3/04f2018 8,333,400 827,617 03/04/2018
Finance and interest
Leasing Private Principal and 03/05/2018 8,333,200 467,910 | 03/05/2018
Limited 2018 Interest
Principal and 04/06/2018 8,333,400 416,051 | 04/06/2018
Interest
Principat and 03/07/2018 8,333,400 301,496 | 0370772018
Interast
Principal and 43/08/2018 8,333,200 241,791 | 03/08/2018
Interest
Principal and 03/09/2018 8,333,400 161,195 | 03/09/2018
interest

Fino Finance Private Limited
CIN Number; Us5921MH1 294PT( 216404

Registered Office: SK Elite, Plot No D-404 £ 405, 05th Flopr, MIDC Turbhe, Navi Murnbai, Maharashtra 400705
Tel: (+91-22) 7137 7000 | www.iinofinance.in



Fino
Fino Finance

ANNEXURE - B

Detalls of redemption & interest due in the next half-year i.e. 1.10.2018 to 31.03.2019:

Series / Tranche Type Due date of Amount
(Principal/ payment {Rs.)
Interest)
Principal interest amount
amount
INES170Q08016
16.10% —~Intrepid Interest 31/12/2018 - 10,365,753
Finance and
Leasing Private interest 29/03/2019 - 9,704,110
Limited 2021
INES17007091
14.30% Intrepid Interest 15/03/2019 - 20,940,450
Finance and
leasing Private
Limited 2022
INES17Q007108
12.00% Intrepid Principal and 03/10/2018 8,333,400 77,988
Finance and Interest
Leasing Private
Limited 2018

Company does not expect default in payment of principal / interest due in next half year

Fino Finance Private Limited
CIN Number: U55921MH1 99GPTC 24 64956

Registered Office: SK Elite, Plot No D-404 § 405, 05th Floor, MIDC Turbhe, Navi Mumbai, Maharashtra 400705
Teli (+91-22) 7137 7000 | www.finofinance.in



Name of Company:Fino Finance Private Limitod
Half-Yearly Compilance

- Listad NGDs - Statament an [SIN, payment on due dates, Credit rating & DRR Requirement ag on 30th Septamber,

Annoxure

2018
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Fino Finance Private Limited
{Formerly known as Intrepid Finance And Leasing Private Limited)

Financial Statements
together with Auditers’ Report
for the year ended 31 March 2018

Certified True Copy
For Fino Finance, Private Limited

C ;any Secretary



Fino Finance Private Limited
{Formerly known as Infrepid Finance And Leasing Private Limited)

Financial statements fogether with the Independent Auditors’ report
Jor the year ended 31 March 2618

Contenis

Auditors” repont

Balance sheet

Statement of profit and loss
Cash flow statement

Notes 10 the financial statements



B SR & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
&th Floor, Lodha Excelus, Telophone +91 {22) 4345 5300
Apolio Mills Compound Fax +81 (22) 4348 5390

¥, M. Joshi Marg, Mahataxmni
Mumbai - 400 011
Indig

Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of

Fino Finance Private Limited
(formerly known as “Inwrepid Finance And Leasing Private Limited ")

Report on the Financia) Statements

We have audited the sccompanying financial statements of Fiao Fimance Private Limited
(formerly knovwn as ‘Intrepid Finance And Leasing Private Limited’) (“the Company™), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2018, the Stafoment of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow
Statement for the year then ended, and summary of the significant accounting policics and other
cxplanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directory is respongible for the matieis stated in Scction 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Aet™} with respeot 1o the preparation of these financial siatements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards preseribed under Seciion 133 of the Act.

"This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequatc accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detccting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and applicdtion of appropriate accounting policies; makiiig
judgments and csticiates thal are ressonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate imernal financial controls, that were operating effectively for cnsuring the
aceuracy and compleieness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presontation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatcment,
whether due 1o fraud or error.

In preparing the Nnancial statemenls, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
10 continuc as a going concern, disclosing, as applicabls, matlers related to poing concem and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company
or {0 ceasc operalions, or has no-realistic aiiernative but to de so.

Auditer’s responsibility
Ouwr responsibitity is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit,

We have laken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are reguired to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made therounder.,

We conducicd our audit of the financial statemenis in aceordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified wnder Section 143(10) of the Act, Those Smndards require that we comply with thical
requirements, and plan and perform the sudit to obtain reasonable assurasice sbout whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement,

BSH&Awudmuhplumﬁwnmh Pagistered Office
P, it Gih Foor, Locha Bxmelus,
usn&mwawm A Mis Compaund

v No. AAB-B182Y M. Joehd Marg, Makndoxmn
wimimmmmm e Mursbi - 400 0T




B 5 R & Associates LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Fino Finance Private Limited
{(Tormerly known as “Intrepid Finance And Leasing Privare Limited’)

Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

An dudit involves perfprming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statemonts, The procedures selected depend on the auditer’s judgment,
inchuding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the {inancial stalements, whether
due (¢ (raud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial
control relevant to the Company’s proparation of the financial statements that give a trae and fhir
view in order ta design audit procedures that are appropriate in the cirammstanices. Ao audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies. used and the reasoriableness of the
accountling estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overali
presentation of the financial statements.

We are also responsible to conclude on the appropriatencss of management’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting snd, based on the audit. evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to cvents or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the, entity’s ability
to continue as a going concera. ) we conclude that a material uncertalnly exists, we are required to
draw aitention in the auditor™s veport to the related disclosures in the fihancial statements or. if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify the apinion. Our conclusions are. besed on the audit evidenge
obiained up to the date of the audilor’s report. However, fiture évents or conditions may cause an
entity to cease (o continue ay & going concern.

We believe that the-audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
For our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Opinion

in our opinion and 1o the best.of our information and recording 1o the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements pive the information required by the Act in the manner se required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting pripciples generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company a8 at 31 March 2018 and its loss and its Cash flows for
the year endad on that date,

Report an other legal and regulatory vequirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order), issned by the Central
Government in terms of scotion 143(1 1) of the Acl, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the
matters specilied in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

{a) We have sought anid obdaived all the information and explanatians which 1o the best ot our
kaowledge and beliefl were necossary for the purposes of oy audit;

{b) Iu our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
s fur as it appoars from our examination of those books;

3] The Ralsnce Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss.and the Cash Flow Statemen! dealt with
by this Report are in agreement willt the books of ascount;

{4y In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
speeificd wnder Section 133 of the Act;



B 5 R & Associates LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Fino Finance Private Limited
(Jormerly known as “Intrepid Finorice And Leasing Private Limited’)

Report on Other Legal and Repulatory Requirements (Continued)

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2078
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31 March 2018 from being appointed as 2 director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(H With respect to the adequacy of thie intemal financial controts with reforence to the financial
statement of the Company and the opsrating effectiveniess of such controls, refer to our
separale Report in “Amnexure B”; and

() With respeet to the othier matters to be included in the Aunditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opittion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us;

I

iii.

iv.

Murmbai
23 May 2018

the Company does not have any pending liigations as on 31 March 2018 which
would impact its financial position:

the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any malerial foresceable losses;

there were no amounts which weore requived to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company; and

The disclosures in the financial statetnents régarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bark notes during the peériod fmom 8 November 2016 ta 30 December 2016
have not been fade since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March
2018. However amounts as.appearing in the didited financial statements for the ysar
ended 31 March 2017 have besn disclosed.

Foi B 8 R & Assopiates LLP
Chesrtered Accoyriants
Firm®s Registration No: 11623 1W/W-100024

.
0 \
- \
Ritesh Goyal
Partner

Membership No: 115007



B SR & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Sth Floor, Lodhs Excelus, Telgphone +81 {22} 4345 5300
Apaitlo Mills Componnd Fax +91 (22) 4345 5399

N. M. Joshi Matg, Mahalaxmi
Mumbal - 400 01
India

Auditors’ Additional Report

To the Board of Directors of

Fino Finance Private Limited
(fornierly known as “Intrepid Finance And Leasing Private Limited?)

Keport on the Financial Statements

[n -addition to the report made under séction 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") on the
financial statements of Fino Finance Private Limited (formerly known as “Intrepid Finance And
Leasing Private Limited’) (“the Company’), for the year ended 31 March 2018 and as reguired by
the Master Dircction on Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank)
Directions. 2016 vide Notification no. DNBS.PPIX03/66.15.001/2016-17 dated 29 September 2018
and amended thereto {“theé Direction’), we report as follows on the matters specified in paragraph 3
and 4 of the said Dircction 1o the extont applicable.

Management’s responsibility for the financial stalements

The Company’s management is responsible for the mallers stated in Scction 134(5) of the Act
with respect 1o the preparation of the financial Hatements thal give a true and fair view of the
{inancial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, inelnding the Accounting Standards specified
in section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Ad for safeguarding the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularitics; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that aré redsonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were opesating effectively for ensuring the-accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the finaneial statements that pive a
true and fair view and are ftee from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The Company's management is responsible for ensuring that the Company complics with the
requirements of the Master Direction ~ Non-Banking Financial Company - Non-Systemically
Important Non-Deposit taking Company {Reserve Bank} Dircctions, 2016 (the ‘“Master Divection™).
This respeneibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant
ta the compliance with the Master Ditection,

Auditne’s responsihility

Pursuant 1o the requirements of the Direction, it is our respongibility 1o examine the books and
records of the Company and repott on the matters speeified in the Divection 1o the extent applicable
o 1he Company.

B3 R Avsocinbe [x pactnssship fiom with Ragistorod Qe
Registrtion Pa. KaSa278) asmvormad iko St Fhotsg, Lot Excobist
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B & fl & Associates LLP

Auditors’ Additional Report (Corntinued)

Fino Finance Private Limited
(formerly known as “Intrepid Finance And Leasing Private Limited)

Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

We conducied our examination in aceordance with the. ‘Guidance Note on Reports or Ceniificates
issued for Special Purposes (Revised 2016)” issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. 'The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code-of
Lithics issucd by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. We have complied with the relevant
applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Controt for Firms that
Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Qther Assurance and Related
Services. Engagements,

Canclusion

3ased on our examination of the fipancial statements-as avand for the vesr ended 31 March 2018,
books of accounts and records of the Company as produced for our examination and according to
the information and explanations given to us we further repoit that:

. The Company is engaged in the business of non-banking financial institution and it hag
ohtained a certificate of registration Wa. B-13.¢1609 from the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI[")
dated 26 April 2002, in pursvance of seotiofi 45-IA of the RI3} Act, 1934;

. The Company is entitled to continue to hold such certificate of registration in terms of its assey/
income pattern as on/ for the year ended 31 March 2018;

. In our ppinion and to the best of our information and according t6 the explanations given o
us, the Company is meeting the required not owned fund requirement as laid down in the
Master Direction,

«  The Board of Directors of the Company has passed-a resolution in its meefing held on 11 April
2017 for nan-acceptancs of public deposits during the year ended 31 March 2018;

. The Company has not aceepted any public deposits during the year ended 35 March 2018;

® 13 vur opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given 10
us; the Company has complied with the prudential norms relafing to income recognition,
aceounting standards, asset classification and provisioning for bad and doubtful debts as
applicableto it in terms of the Master Directions in the preparation of financial statements for
‘the vear ended 371 March 2018;

s In sur opinion and to the best of our information dnd according 1o the explanations given to
ug, the Company is not a Systemically Trnportant Non-deposit taking NIBBFC as defined in
paragraph 3 (xxviii) of the Master Direction., Therefore, the Company is not regoired 1o submit
Form NBS-7. However, s per il letter dated 5 April 2018 received from RBL the Company
has been asked 1o file NBS-7 by 10 June 2018.

] Based on the criteria set forth by the RBI in paragraph 3 (xix) of the Master Direction for
clagsification of NBFC as NBFC-Micro Finance Institutions (MF1), the Company meets the
eriteria to be classified as NBFC-MP1 as dofined in the aforesaid Master Direction with
reforence 1o the busingss carried on by it duringthe year ended 31 March 2018,



E S R & Associates LLP

Auditors’ Additional Report (Continued)

Fino Finance Private Limited
(farmerly known us ‘Intrepid Finance And Loaging Private Limited Y

Restriction on Use

This Report is addressed to and provided to the Board of Directors salely to comply with the
aforesaid Direction and for spbmission to RBI, if required abd may not be suitable for any other
purpose. Accordingly, our Report should not bequoted or referred 10 in any other document or made
available to any other person of persons without our prior written consent. Also, we neither accopt
nor assume any duty or liability for any other purpose or to any other party 10 whom our Report is
shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For B S R & Associates LLY
Chartered Accowntanis
Firm's Registration No: F16231W/W-100024

\ X
\3
'J

Ritesh Goyal
Mumbai Partiier
23 May 2018 Membership Na: 115007



B 5 R & Associates LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Aunditor’s Repoxt of even date on financial
statements of Figo Finance Private Limited

(i)

{1}

(i)

{iv)

v)

(vi)

{vii)

a. The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative delails and situation of fixed assots.

b The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of the fixed assets
in a phased manner which, in our opinion, js reasonable having regard to the siecof
the Company and the nature of ity assets. Pursuant to the program, cortain fixed
assets were physically verified by the managemoent during the year. According 1o
the information and explanation given fo us, no material discrepancies were noticed
on such venification.

e According the information and expianations given 10 us and on the basis of qur
examination of the retords of the Company, the Company does not hold any
immavable property duting the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(iXc) of the Order is
nol applicable.

The Company is Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC), engeged in the business of
lending. Accordingly, it does ot hold any physical inventories. Thus, paragraph 3(ii) of the
Order in not applicable o the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liahility Partnerships or other
parties covered in the registor maintained under scetion 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the
provision of clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Compeny.

According 10 1he information and explanations given o us, the Company has vot granted
any loans, made investments or provided guarantecs under section 185 and 186 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provision of elause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explapations given fo.us, the Company has nél actepted
any deposits from the public to which the direstives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
the provisions of Section 73 to Section 76 or any other relevani provisions of the Act and
the rules framed there under apply.

The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub
seclion {1) of scction 148 of the Act for any of the sorvices rendered by the Company.
Accordingly, the provision of clanse 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable.

According {o the information and cxplanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of records of the Company, in respect of statatery dues:

ay  The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed staiulory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Incorne-ax, Salos Tax, Service
Tax, Customs Duty, Exvise Duty, Valve Added Tax, cess and olther material statutory
dues applicable 10 it ta the appropriate authorities except in case of provident fund,
wliere whilst the Company has demonstrated Hs ghility to pay such amounts, for centain
cemployees, the same havé not been acéepled by the PIF authority on dccount of delay
in linking of andhar nmmber by such employees of the Company to the provident fund
account and except for professional tax as the Company has not oblained registration
in four states, As explained to us the Company did not have any dues on account of
safes 1ax, doty of customs, value added 1ax or duty of excisa.



B 'S R & Assoriates LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Aaditor’s Report of even date on financial
statements of Fino Finance Private Limited (Continued)

(i)

(ix)

(x)

{xi)

(xit)

b} There wére no undmputed amounts payable.in respect of provident fund, employecs®
state insurance, income (ax, service tax, cess and other material statulory dues except
for professional tax were in arrears as at 31 March 2018 for a period of more than
six months from the date ﬁrey became payable. The extent of arrears of outstanding

statutory dues has been given below:

Name of the Statute Nature of the Amcunt  Period to which  Due Diate

DPuex (Rs) the aqosunt

relates

Dyzpariment of Commercinl Taxes  Profsssionsl tax 43,180 EY.2017-18  30-May-17
Neparyment-of Commersinl Texes  Professional tax 30,357 FY.2007-18  A0-Jun-t7
Depurtment of Commercial Tawxes  Profossional tax 24,119 FY. 201718 30-Iul-17
Deparuent of Commiercial Taxes  Professionmed tax 26,190 FY. 200718 30-Aup-17
Leparitient of Commercial Taxcs  Professional tax 28,994 F.Y.2007-18  30-Sep-17
Department of Commereinl Taxes  Professional tax 27,866 EY. 2017418 30-Oct-17
Deporiment of Commercial Taxes  Professional tax 37.924 F.Y 201718 34-Noe-17
Deparunent of Commercial Taxes  Profcssional tax 52.235 FY.2007-18  30-I3ce-1?
depariment of Commercial Taxes  Frofessions! tux 32792 F.Y. 201718 30-Jan-i8
Deparsmontof Commercial Taxes  Profossional tax 48451 EY 201718 28-Feb-18
Departmont of Commercial Takes  Professignal tax 63,769 Y. 201718 20-Mar-18
Department of Commercial Taxes  Professional tex 50,503 LY. 201718 30-Aprjg

¢) There are no dussof Tncome-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax/Goods and Service "Tax.
Customs Duty, Excise Duty and Value Added Tax as on March 31,2018 on account
of disputes.

In our opinion and according 10 the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or bormrowings to finaricial institutions, banks and
debenture- hoiders. The Compuny has not taken any losn from the Government.

in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given o us, the term loans
taken by the Company have been applied for the purpose for which they were taised. The
Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
during the year.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of te Company, carried out
in dccordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according 1o the
explanation and information given 1o us, no material frand by the Company or on the
Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reporied during the course of anr
audit.

According to the iInformation and explanations give to us and based on owr examination of
the reeords of the Company, the Company has paid/fprovided lor managerial remuncration
in accardance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act,

In our apinion and according 1o the information and expianations given to us, the Company
is not a nidhi company, Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.



BS R & Assoclatas LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditer’s Report of even date on financixl
statements-of Fino Finance Private Limited (Continued)

{xii)  According to the information and cxplanations given to us and on the basis of our
cxamination ol the records of the Company, transdctions with the related parties are iv
compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the detnils have been
disclosed in the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv})  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on ‘opr cxamination of
the records of the Conipany, the Company hias not madi sny prefereatial aliotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
the provision of clatse 3(xiv) ‘of the Order is not applicable 10 the Company.

{(xv)  According o the information and explanations given fo us and based on our examination of
the records, during.the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash fransactions with
dircctors or persons connected with hint and hence the provision of Section 192 of the Act
is not applicable,

(xvi)  The Company is required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 and it has obtained certificate of registration dated 26 April 2002 which has been
revised on 2 May 2017,

For B SR & Associates LLP
Chartered Accowitants
Firm's Registration No: 116231W/W- 100024

!QP\

Ritesh duyal
Mumbai Larmer
23 May 2018 Membership No: 115607



B S R & Associates LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Aunditor’s Report of even date on the
financial statements of Fino Finance Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of ‘Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have atdited the internal financial eontrols over financist reporting of Fino Finance Private
Limted (formeriy known as Intrepid Finance And Leasing Privaie Limited”) (“fhe Company™) as of 31
March 2018 in conjunction with- owr audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on thut date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Countrols

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporfing criterid established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal contro! stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Interndl Financisl Controls over Financigl Reporting issued by the Institule of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAD). These responisibilities include the dosign, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating cffectively for ensaring
the orderly and cfficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company’s poficizs, the
safeguarding of its adsets, the. prevention and detection of Trauds uhd errors, the accuracy and
comnpieleness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financia) information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s intemnal financial controls over financial
repotting based on our dudit. We conducted dur andit in accordance with the Guidence Wote on
Audit of Internal Financigl Controls over Fipancial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by WCAI and deemed {0 be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Act, 1o the cxtent applicable to an audii of internal financial contrals, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Coatrols and, bath issued by the Insticste of Chartered Avcountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Nole require that- we comply with ethical requirements,
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether adequale internal
financial comrols over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures 1o obtain audit evidehce about the adequacy of the
internal financial cantrols systetn aver financial reporting and their operating, cffectiveiess. Qur
audit of internal financial controls over finanecial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that & material weaknoss
exists, and testing and evalualing the design and operating effectivoness of internal control based
on the -assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of materisl misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or erver.

We heliove that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 10 provide a basis
for owr audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial coitrels system ovei financial
repoTtNE.



B S R & Associatas LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the
financial statements of Fino Finance Private Limited (Continued)

Mecaniug of lnternal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the relisbility of finaucial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accomlance with generally dccepted dccounting
principles. A Company's. intérnal financial contrel over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable. detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
stalemens in accordance with generally accepted accounting priaciples, and that receipts and
cxpenditures of the Company are being made only in sccordance with guthorisations of
management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance reparding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, uye, or disposition of the. Company's
assets that could havé a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherémt Limitations of Tnternil Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent Timitations.of internal financial controls over finuncial reporting, including
the passibility of collusion or improper masegement override of contrals, material misstatements
due werror or fraud may ocpur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial contrals dver fingmeial yeporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial contrel over financial reporting may become inadequate because of chanpes in
conditions. or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

in our apinian, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate iriternal financial controls
system ever financial reporting and such internal financial controls over fipaacial reporting were
operating effectively as at 3] March 2018, based on the interna! control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the esseriial components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
issued by the Instituie of Chartered Accountants of Iadia.

ForB 8 R & Associates LLP
Chariered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 11623 1W/W-100024

Ritesh Goyal
Mumbei Pariner
23 May 2018 Memborship No: 115007
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Fino Finance Private Limited
tFarmerly knowa as inerephd Financs dud Leasing Private Limited)

Rulance sheet
ux ot 31 March 2008

tCwrency fndian Rupeos)
rariculaes
Lquity wnd Habilities

Skarehtldery' funds
Share capilal
Reserves wad surplug

Natw-carcent liabijities
L.ong 1erm hurrowings
bong term provisions

Crerent Labilities
Short-temm botrowingy
Fraudes payithies
Druies of micer entesprives dod small enteiprives
thues of ereditors other than micro entorprises and smoll enturpéises
Cnber curvent ligbilities
Short tepn provisions

Toml

ANSeLy

Non-current siely

Faxed wssuis

Tungible assers
Dacfomred tax sssels {net)
Long won loans and-advanccs
[Rhor aup-eurrent a53cts

Current nssets

Crrsn mvesiinenty

Frwde soccivables

Cosh ond bask bolances-
&hart rerm toans nd advances

ke &urrent ngsets

Tuossl

Nigmficund acconnung poltciey
Nates s the finuncial statemenys

hi nows yélerred vo abiove form an inegral pic of the francial statonichts

As por anr gepert of even date nitacliod,

For 8 8 R & Assacistes LLP

Chartered Acvowntants
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¥ino Finance Private Limited.

rlarmerly knows af Intrepad Finence And Leasing Privaw Linsad)

Statement of profit and loss
Jor the vear eaded 31 March 2018

[Curreney: Indicn Rupuisy
Particitlars
Intome

Revenue trom aperations
nhur isome

‘Fetal revenue (1)

Expenses

Urnplayess benefits

Finneo costs

Deprecianod and aenortisation
Pravision for Joan losses and doobtfu debtshwrite ofF
UHher expenses

Total expesses {11)

#eafit/ (loss) before.tax (1) - {11
Tax expeases

Currems sy

Tax pravision for carlier years
Defesred dax {eeedin)

“Total tix expenrses

Peolic / {foss) for the year

Escaing per cquity share (Refer Kote 2345
[Nominnl valuk of skare Rs. 10 (Previouy year: R, 10)]

FERTIT
Dihued

Significantaccountung policies
Notes U the floancial statesmonts

“The notes rofirred fo above form ah integral part of the fnancizl stsements

“

As prer our ceport of oven dat attiehed.

For BS R & Assochates 1LY
Charwered Accountants
Fire's Registration Noe 116235 WANV-100024
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Fino Finance Private Limited
(Farmerly knowen as Intrepid Finance And Leasing Privale Linited)

Cash flow statement
fur the vear ended 3) Morch 2018

tCursancy: hwdiin Rupess)

Particulars 218 2017
Profit! {lows} belove tax {417,101, 308) 2177578
Cash flnw frony oprrating activities

Adjustoents §

Beprecition and amostization 54,051,976 10,300,218
Pravision for Juan losses and dowbtlil debifurite off 605,817,854 71.5885,768
Unampptised guarantoe ¢ost 2,484,848 {240,8100)
Crain or scousisation transactions £39,997,550) 44,339,338}
Provition for gratiity {626,456) -
Provision for compensaled abseree 332,852 -
Finanee coat 65,435,738 447,547 881
Income on cumenl invesonents (678,519Y (8,695.485)
Uargtised gam on invisiments i utund funds - {283,208}
Opernting prodit hefore working eapital changs 71,119,034 4784145 585
Working capiiuf changes
(Decrense) £ inemuse in tde payabiles 43,537,951 £21,826,484}
Drozreuse i wade seceivables (41,735,132) -
(Erecroase) / increase 1o ather elrent fishititiss {506,596 ,313) 2B,T 093
Decrease J (increase] i fong tomm Toans and sdvanges (1,036,4R0,427) 5018, 8K5,867
Deesease / (increase) in other non-cuvent assets (186,698,791} 61.476,756
{Increuse) w short tenm Joans and advances (657,104,955) (943,065,6581)
Duergase { increwse) i pihgr.aroin assets 3,158,943 (9,941, 744)
Dugrease { {incranse) in fixed depnsits (147,605,775) (139,319,712}
Caush generated from operations (1,903,587,458) (37,071,318}
Income e prid (net of rotunds) (28,74%,1469) (29,047,074}
Net.tash flows used In operating setivities (A} (1,924,638,627) {65,118.3906)
Cash flow from investing sctivities
Pyrcliuse of fixed aseuts {65,833, 5) (94.892,130)
Purchase of gurrent nvestinents - (1.933,978,6%0)
Proveeds om anle of current mvestments 30,961,724 1.912.624,173

Nerensh paed in jovesting s¢iivities (B) [37.871.2%9) {1i6,196.645)

Canh flow from finsacing eetiviiity .
Procecds from sssuwice of share capiial 49,599,987

Prazevds from long, term borrowings 2,580,600,000 2,323 ,600.000
Repayment af long-teim barrowings {1,581,260 5433 (1.587.347.242)
Proeceds from shore tecm borfowfogs {net) 222,106,458 249,640,510
Procgeds / {repayment) oo socotmi-f sécuritisstion arangemant UL TET 155,949,332
Fuante cost paid (457858,084) (449,984,729)
et cush fow geacruted from Susnciag activities (€) 1,50,1%9.59¢ 379,959,207

Nt merease / {detrense) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {459,348 334) 197.644,164




Fino Finance Private Limited
sFnver e kinown as hirepid Finance And Leasmg Private Limited}

Cash flow statemaent
fordhte vear emded 31 Moreh 2015

rumenny ndikn Kepees)

Farticulars

Cach and cash equivaients a1 the baginning af the year
Cazh and cxsh equivalonts &f the end of the year
Cumpoacate of cash and cagh rguivalents

{'ush n hand

Hudnee with banks

= curront accoust

Tolal cash and cash equivalents fRéfer Note 15)
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Fino Finance Private Limited
{Formerly bnowi as Iirepid Finance And Leasing Private Lintited)

Notes tg the financial statements (Continued)
as ar 2§ March 2HE

(Currency: Indian Rupees)

2017

4513902

2038
Reserves and surplus
Secoritiex prerainm necount
Openmg hudance 451,391,211
Add: premiure oo isste of squity Shares 637,643,967
‘Clasing balznce 1, 149,035,118

451,391,211

Statutory Regerve

Statutory Rescrve under section 45-1C of the Reserve Bunk of lndis Act; 1934 (the RBI
Act) {Refer Note 4.1 below}

Upsng balance 3,645,175 3,236,159
Pransfer during the yoear - 409,020
Closing balance 3,644,179 3043179
Sratement of profit and foss

Openng batance 14,260,127 11.674,046
Add: Peofit f iloas) for the yoar (3720,063,254) 2.,045.101
Yaxs: Tronsfer 10 sinlutory reserve - {109.020)
Clesing balanee (45,803,127) 14,260,127
Tulak roserve wnd surpiuy 746,877,230 469,296,517

Sdawe the Company hud bt transferred oy sum 10 the statutory reserve (il the year entfed 31 March 2013 which wad oot in compliance with
kection 45-1C of the RBI Aet, the Company had wiitten 1o the RBI explaining the above and asked REI 1 condone the delay in transforring
Serrequured umiunts 1o the statulory reserve. The Company ki nol revcived any further commbrication from the RBI in 1kis regurd




Fino Finance Private Limited
tFarmerly nown as Intrepid Finance And Leasing Private Lirited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
as at 31 Mureh 2018

{Cuorrency: Indisn Rupees)

2038 2011
5 Long term borrowings

Term foans
Loan from banks (secured) 469,423,728 362,102.921
Loan from non banking financiat companies {secured) 1,081,126 438 556,377,010
Prrvanely placed redeemable nan convertible debentuse {scoied) .
{Refer Note 23.19) $48,600.900 650,642,450,
Subordinated debt (Unsecureid) 250,000 4500 250.004,000
Tatad 2,349,150,167 1.819.161 581

‘8. Term loans from banks {heving cutrent matrities emmting to-Ra. 500,359,089) are taken ot an interest rate ranging from 10.75% p.a, 1o
13.05% p.&. and wre wepaynble s monthly / quaaely 7 somually installoams ranging from 24 to 39 months. Term lowy erc sceurei) by way
of excheivae charge craeted thisugh hypothecstion of the.specific loans for sécurity civer, runging from 1.0 to 1.2 times of the cutzianding
joans, eorporate guarantee of Holding Company viz, Fino PayTech Limited snd i vase of cortain loans, also through sash tollaterals,

b. Tetm loans from ron basking financial companies (having correat maturities amounting iy Ks, £.1353.223,110) are taken al an iuterest rane
rangng from 10.90% p.o. 1o 15.50% p.a, and are tepayable in monthly / quertedy installmicts ranging ftom 18 10 36 months, Term Jouns
are secured by way of exclusive charge ereated through bypothecstion of the spegific loans for sceurity cover, ranging from 1.9 w 1.2 times
of the putsranding loans, through cash coliaserals / fifst foss default guaranics deprosit and in case of corain Toans, alss post deted cisgues.

& Non convertibie debenturcs ase issued &Y an inkerest rale of 12.00% p.a, 19 14.50% p.2u. and arc rephyable in monthly installments / buller
paymcot ranging from 24 to 72 installmenty How the desmed dete of allohment: Nox vonvenible debentures are scowsd through
hypotbecation of the specific poul of Joans originated out of the debeature proceeds with & secimity cover, ranging frem 1.0 to 1.2 times of
the outstanding debenturcs and guarnotec covoring, vanging from 17.25% 1w 24.00% of the respoctive nilial prinoipal valte of the
debontures from third party gusrsntors,

s Subordinsied debt s issucd & un fptereyt tate of 16.10% and is repoyable on 30 September 2021 with interest pryable gharctly.
Subardinated debt is unseoured uod listed on Bombay stork exchange,

6 Long tevm provisions

Provision for empleyee benefits:

Provision for gratnity 5826,01% -

Provision for compensated absenois 2,435,135 -
{AS 8,261,148 -

Others:

Degvigion lor loan losses 16,833,074 4308312
o) 16833074 4,308,317

Forat Total {A) + (B) 25094 822 4308312




Fino Finance Private Limited

Fgrmerte known as {nerepid Finance And Leasing Privaie Limited)

Nores to the financial statements {Comtinwed)
oy @t 3T Morch 2018

{Currency.indian Rupews)

7 Short-term borrowings

[.oans repayable on demnnd lrom banks (secured)
- Cash credit ¢
~Ovor drafy =+

Total P

1018 2017
252,232.426 249.640.510
119.514,534 .
411746 861 740 640810

* Cash credit facility from bank is taken at sn interest gt of 11.00% p.a. and the same is scoursd agamst 1.1 thoes of the outsianding louns,

corporile guarantize-of Holding Company viz. Fino PayTech Limited and cash colliteraby,

** Qver diadt fucilities ffom banks are 1aken a1 #n jotersst rate mnging from 4,60% 1o 7.90% p.a. and the sume re secured against 1.05 times

ol vash.collagrals,

] Other current liabilities

Llurrent meuntias of long-temm bakowings (socared)

Curveni matunues of v convertible debontures (seoured) (Refer Now 23.19)
interest acertieil byt not dug on borrawings

Statutory duss puyable )

Unamoriised gam on securitisdion manyactions (Refer Note 23.12)
Collestions payable on Yoens seouritived

Lithies

Total
b Short term provisians

Provivion for employee beneflis:

Provision for grattity
Frovigion for compensated abscnees

(&)
{Hhers:
Bravigion for loan losses
Vrisvsaenr Jor o [uel of sdvancee taxof Ry, 24,998,879 {Previous Year: Rs. 25,097 8595
()]
o
] S Total (A) + (2)

1.653,582,199 L0035 671,864
83,750,050 282 916,720
23638278 16.090.624

9,294,923 4,156,744
1,799,457 42,170,057
9,024,413 1.E13.626
20,428.234 .
1811517454 1.359.819.635
1,862,738~ -
1,445,936 -
3,508,674 .
118,363,261 67,123,771
1638967 1,539,987
120,002,228 #8,663.758
123,210,902 65,663,758
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Fino Finance Private Limited
(Formerly brows ay Intrepid Finawce And Leasing Prévats Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continked)
ag.ai 31 March 018

iCurrensy: ndian Rupecs)

11 Longterm loans aud advances

Founs 10 joint Sigbility groups
LVsecured, considared good
binsecured. considued doubiful
Loans 10 MSME (Secured, oonsidesed good)

Securtty deposits (Linsecured, considered good)

Gther loans sod advances (Unsecared, cousidered good}
Advance tas [nerof provision for wx of B, 42,194,683 (Provious Year: Rs. 21,346,515))

Terai

12 Oiher non-current assets
{Unsecured, considersd good)

Bank deposits (mutnring after 12 months from fhe seporting dawc)®
Goods and service tax inpur eredit

Total

* Represents deposits of Rs. 222,493,113 (Previons Year : Rs, 62,573.813) provided as cosh
coltateril sgainst borrowings, deposits of Rs, 29,041,274 (Previaus Yeur : Re. Nil) provided as sash
collaterad egainst fonn secvnitised and-deposis of Rs, 10,208,049 (Previous Year : Rs. Nil) provided
s cushi coltatera) agsinst business comepopfent drtangeniont,

13  Current invesfments
Nt Lnits {Previous Year ; 1.155,468.25 Units) of SBI Corporats Hond Funds
Tutal
Aggregate Value of Quoted lnvestments
Aggregite Value of Unquoted Investments
{Cost Ml (Previous Yesr: 30,283 285))
Agpregate provision made for giminudion in valse of nvesiments..
Total

14 Trade receivabies

Outstanding for & period exceeding six months from
the date they are due far pavment

Unsecured, considered goad
Hascourcd, considerpd doubiful

iter receivables

Laveenney, consideced good

o
Y

2018 2007
1.194,687.509 165,895,974
17,526,385 £,599,540
47,805,498 .
13.397 4% 12.217.200
AR AT 25732496
li296i972é3‘? 1395‘635;}69
261,739,438 62,573,813
14,083,221 26,470,053
275,743,657 £9.043. 368
- 30,283205
- 30.243.205
i
- 30,263,205
- 30283305
41,738,102 .
41,735,132 “




Fino Finance Private Limited
tFarmerly known ar frirepid Finance And Lvasing Private Lintited)

Notes ti the finuncisl statements (Contirued)
s at 31 Mureh 2018

(Cucreney: Indian Rupees)

2058 2017
15 Cash and bank balanges
Casls und cash equiviients
Cashy on hand 79,946,433
Talantes with scheduled banks:
- 1 ousrent actounts 140,151,954 &79,446,721
{A) 220,003.387 679446721
{ther bank balapees
Balances with sebeduled banks
- In deposit aucounts (with oripinal mammy in-excess of three months 307,893,381 160,287,603
end due to moture within 12 months from the eporting date)*
(B) 307,823,381 160,287,603
Totak (A} + (D) S27.5%1,768 339,734,324
* Reprosents doposits of Rs. 269,578,288 (Previous Year @ Re. 112,072,030) provided as cmh
voltaterd] apainst bomrowings, depegits of Rs, Ni (Previous Year § Rs, 48,215,573) provided as-cash
eotlateral against foan seouritised wod deposits of Rs, 38,315,093 (Privious Yoar : Rs. Nil) provided
#s pash gollateral dpainst busivess coricpondent avangement:
& Short term loans and advances
Lasans joint Hability groups
Uasocured, consideréd good 3,270,657 847 2,073,401 651
Unsecurcd, considered doubtiul 131,781,256 445,248,232
foens 10 MSME (Secured, considered. goad) 8,152,584 -
Dunth claim veccivabie
Unseewred, conglidercd good 222294 3,784.276
Ungecured, zonsidered doubtfu! €.259.358 3987236
Less . Provision for donbtfinl dusth claim receivable 10,159,158} (1,987,230}
Secirity deposits {Unsecured, considered pood) ¢ 467,850 38,264,545
Other Ians and advapces (Unseoured, considered gopd) 7
Laoan 10 emplayees a4 B
Prepaid cxpenses’ 4560,250 146816
Total ISIBIECATS 2760546 520
+ Roproseats cash collaternt of R, Mil {Provioys Year : s, 37,044 243) placed to avait i loan Eom
Nan-hanking Finunewl Cempanies
17 Other current asséfs
{Ungecured, consldeced good}
Inlepest secraed bt a0t due on fixed dipasits 1,144,991 3.934,195
interest aecried bat pol das on toans o jeint lability groups and MSMEE toans. 18,329,936 39,836,055
Unanortised guaranics vest - 2484 545
Gudwin 11.615,982 12,519,602
fotal 450,999 .48 774,397
oy P
Ve - S ;.e.m\\
I £ T
- ;&
|! [ATIEN
N

s
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Fino Finance Private Limited

rFormerly known as Inirepid Finance And Leasing Privare Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Contirmnied)

for the vear ended 31 Marels 2018

(Cuvreney: Indian Rugeas)

1§ Revenue fron; operatigns

Ingercst scome

Iterest insome on partfalio loans

Giain on losns securitised {Relfer Note 23,12)
Oither Binanciak seevices

Lean prowessing fees

interest on fixed deposits™

Service charges

* Repruscns interest on fixed deposits placed s cash coltateral to avail tern: foans iom hanks,
non-banking Gnancial comopanies and oo deposits placted ag, cash collateral in conpection with

asser socuritivetion.

19 Oiher income

Unrealised g on investinents in mutual funds

fncome on curment investiaents
Suervice charges

20 Employee benefits

Sataries and wagds

(Includes RE. Nil (Provieus Year: 24,925,007) of Fino FayTech Limited and Rs. Nil (Previous
Year: 176:670,292) of Fino Paymenis Bank Limited)

Contribution to provident gng othey funds
Giratuity

Compensited absences

Staff wolfars gapenses

21 Finawee costy

Interest
- O temm loans fom barnks
- O term doans from financial matitutions
~ Ot non-convertible debenturcs
Finance chavges
- Other boregwing Costs

2018 2007
B70,475 806 704,609,086
39,997,550 44,349 356
#T1,389,083 34,846,323
22,659,606 24,727.541
250,423,783 400,000
1,230.945,538 £08.932.106
- 183,205
478,519 8695485
- 38147245
§38.519 47,125 515
301,708,299 200,705,299
21,193,764
{626,456)
2,331,852
204,745
426,112,679 200793399
$9,48%,814 83,167,514
234,813,793 250,889,991
106,204,425 104,554,048
24,745,706 31,936,308
465,435,738 467,547,881

L



Fino Finance Private Limited
(Formerty known os Infrepid Finance And Loasing Private lLimited)

Notes to the financial statements (Confined)
dor the vewr anded 31 Marel 2018

(CurreneyT Indian Rupiees)

27

Grther expenses {Refer Note No.23.11)

Travelhmg and conveyancs

Rent

Legul, professional and consudtancy charges
Technology expenses

Commugication cist

Prinqing and statonary

{nfastructuse coxl

1$enk charges

Edecirteity cherges

Rwes un tidxes

Auditors’ remuneration [Refer Nate 23.6)
ARVEIISEINENL eipertas

Insurance

Repales and mainienance

Eireutons siiing fees

Miscellangous expenyes

Tataf

P

2018 2017

64,699,701 29,223,617
18,212,207 22,814,163
32H79,163 31,481.38)
- 20,869,097
16,191,827 5473.703
6,536,011 43557103
- 3,134,050
751575 257,252
4595405 1,609,640
1,366,458 1.592.47h
630,691 1347.10%
1,477,375 1,340,220
1,562,723 1,109,013
6,581,970 908,532
315,125 206,000
11,147,245 6312,190

197,907,4% 173 6a8.30]




Fino

Finance Private Limited

(Formerly kniwn ax Intrepid Finance And Leasing Privare Limited)

Notes

to the financial statements

Jar the year ended 31 March 2018

{Currency: Indian Rupecs)

1.

21

2.2

2.3

Y

Background

Fino Finance Private Linvited (Formerly known o3 Intrepid Finance And Leasing Private
Limited) (‘the Company”} was incorporated on 8 March 1994, The Company is a Non-
Banking Financial Company - Non-Systemically Important ~ Non Deposit Accepting
Company (NBEC-NSI-ND) mgistered with Reserve Bank of India (RB1). |t is engaged in
providing finance lo poor women in tural areas of India who are orgenized as Joint
Liability: Groups (*JL£3'). The Company has been allotted NBFC-Micro Finance Institution
(NBFC-MPT) License with cffect from 9th March 2015,

Siguificant accounting policies

The accounting palicies set out below have been applied consistently to the pericds
presented in these financial statements,

Basis uf preparation of financial statements

The financia! statements have been prepared and presented under the historical cost
convention. and accrual basis of accounting, unless otherwise stated, and in actordance
with the generally accepted accounting principtes in India (“Indian GAAP™) and conform
1o the statutory requirements, ¢irculars and guidelines issued by the RBIY as applicable to a
NBFCNSI-ND and NBFC-MFI from tirae to time to the extent that they have an impact
on the fnancial statements and cutrent practices prevailing in India. The financial
statements have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Accounting
Standards (“AS™) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Generally Aceepled
Accounting Principles {GAAP) requires management to make judgments, cstimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amount of
assets. Habilities, incomes, expenses and the disclosura of contingent labilities on the date
of the financial statements. Actaa! results could differ from these estimates. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviswed of an ongeing basis. Any revision 1o accounting
estimates is recognized prospectively in curent and future periods.

Current — now-current clussificarion

Aliasseis and linbilities are classified into cument and non-current.

Assets

An asset is ofassified as current when it satisfies any of the following ¢riteria:

{u) it is expected to be realised im, or is intended for sule or comsumption in, the
Company's nonnel operating cycle;

(b} it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
(¢) il is expected to be realised within 12 months afier the reporting date; or

{dY # is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used td\\.«\ W )

settle a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.
Current assets include the current portion of nan-cirrent financial assets.

Al other assets are classified as non-current.




Fino Finance Private Limited
(Formeriy kriwn as Intrepid Finanée And Leasing Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
Jor the year-ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian Rupees)

20

A3

2.

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Current - non-curreni classification (Continved)

Liabilities

A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
(a} it is expeoted to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cyole;

(b} it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

(¢} it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; or

(d) the Company does not have an waconditional right 10 defer settlement of the liability
for at least 12 months sfter the reporting date, Tetms of a lability that could, at the
option of the counterpartly, result in its ssitlement by the issue of equity instruments do
not affect its clagsification.

Current liabilities include cisrvent portion of hir-current financial lisbilities.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Revenne recognition

i Interest income on loans given is recognised at the contractual rate of interest, on ap
accrual basis, except in the case of non-performing asssets (NPA) where it is
recognised upon realisation, as per prudential norms of the RBL

ii.  Interest income on deposits with banks is recognized on 4 time proportion acerual
basis taking into aceount the amount cutstanding and the tate applicable.

iti. Loan processing foes are recognised-on an upfront basis,

v, Service charges are recognised on accrusl basis in accordanceé with the service
agreement,

Classification of Loans to Joint Liability Groups

All loan exposures are clasgified into standard assets and non performing assefs as per
below:

i Standard assets: The asset in respect of which, no default in repayment of principal
or payment of interest is pexceived and which does not disclose any prablem nor
carry more than normal cisk attached to the bysiness; and

it.  Mon-performing asseis: Asset for which, interest/principal payment has
remained overdue for a period of 90 days or more.
Provision for lean losses

Laans to Joint Liability Groups are provided for as por the management’s esthnates, subject
to the minimum provision required, as prescribed nnder the RBI Master Diregtion N,
DNBR.PD. 807/03.10,119/2016-17 dated 01/09/2016 which is set out below:

The aggregate loan provision is maintained at the higher of a) 1% of the outstanding loan ; ; w

portiplio or b} 30% of the aggregate loan installments which are overdue for mire than a0 \:
days and less than 180 days and 180% of the nggregate Joan installments which are everdue
for 180 days or more.

e
- ¥
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Fino Finance Private Limited
(Formerly knowtr.ay Intrepid Finonce And Leasing Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements (Continned)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian Rupees)
2. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
2.5 Classification of Loans to Joint Liability Groups (Continued)

Standard asset provisioning

The losn pravision for standard assets is maintained on the sggregate portfolio outstanding
as on the reporting date,

Loun Write off Norms:

All louns which are overdue for more than 180 days and not vecoverable in the opinion of
management are written off.

2.6 Classification of Loans to Micre Smalt and Medium Emterprises (MSME)
All loan exposures are classified ino the following catepories:

i Standard asset: The asset in respect of which, no default in repayment of principal or
payment of interest is perceived and which does not disclose any. problem or carry
more than normal risk aftsched to the business;

i. Nom- performing assets: The asset for which, interest/principal payment has
remained overdue for a petiod of § months or more.

iii. Sub-standard asset: Shall mean

{8) an assct which hag been olassified .as non-performing asset for a period not
exceeding 18 months;

(b} an asset where the terms of the agreement regarding interest and / or principal
have been renegotiated or tescheduled or restructured affer commencement of
operations, until the expiry of one year of satisfactory perfonmance under the
renegotiated or rescheduled or restructured terms

iv.  Doubtful asset: The asset, which remains a sub-standard asset for 4 period exceeding
18 mounths; and

v.  Loss wssel: Shall mean

{8} An asset which bas been identified as loss asset by the non-banking financial
company or ifs internal or-external auditor or by the Bank during the inspection
of the applicable NBFC, to the extent it is not written off by the applicable
NBFC; and

(b) An asset which is adversely affecred by a potential threat of non-recoverability
due to either erosion in the valve of seourity or non-availabilify of security or
due to any fraudulent act or omission on the part of the botrower.

Provisioning on assets

Loans to MSME are provided for as per the menggement’s cstitnates, subject to the
minimum provision required, as prescribed under the RBI Master Direction No. DNBR.PD.
007/403.10.119/2016-17 dared 0170972016 which is set out below;

-

)
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Fino Finance Private Limited
(Formerly known as Intrepid Kinance And Leasing Private Limited)

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
Jor the year ended 31 March 2018

(Currency: Indian Rupees)

2

2.0

2.7

2.8

2.9

Significant accounting policies (Confinued)

Classificarion of Loans ta MSME {Continued)

Classification of Asset Category Provision Requirement as % of
putstanding
Standard Any. 6.40%:
Sub-standard Any 10%
Doubtfol: vp 10 one veasr Secired -20%
Doubtful: one to threg year Secured 30%
Droubtful: More than threo year Becured 50%
Donbifid Unsecuied 100%
1085 ausels Any 100%

Securitisation ransaction

The Company securitises its loans through Special Purpose Vehicles ('SPVY). Loans
sceuritized o the SPV are derecognized once mansgement is satisfied that control over the
underlying loans has been transferred.

Post securitization, the Company continues o service the loans transferred to the SPV. The
Company provides credit enhancement in the form of cash collaterals to the 8PV,

Gain arising on securitization of loans is amortised over the residval muturity of the
securitised loans. Loss, if any, is recognised immediately in the stitement of profil and loss
a8 per the provisions of ‘Revisions to the Guidelines on Securitisation Trensactions' vide
RB1 Master Direction No. DNBR.PD. 007/03.10.119/2016-17 dated 01/09/2G16.

Cruaranior conmissicrn

Commission paid by the Company to third parties for guarantees issued by them in respect
of the Company’s borrowings have been amortised over the tenure of the guarantee.

Fixed ussels and deprecigtion

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of fixed asscts
comprises purchase price and any aitributeble cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for its intended use,

Pursnant to change.in the usefif life as prescribed under the Schedule 1T of the Companies
Act, 2013, deprecistion is provided over the usefal Iié on Written Down Value basts as
per the details below, fron the date ssset is ready to use

Class of asset Usedul life with effoet from Useful life apto
1 Aprit 2014 21 March 2814
Compaters 5 Yours 6 Years
(ffice cquipments 5 Years 20 Years
Piam and Machinery 5 Years 20 Yuears
Fumitare gnd Fixtures 1} Years 13 Years
Vehicles § Yemrs 5 Vears
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2, Significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.9 Fixed assers and depreciation (Covnslitsied)

Further the estimated useful life of fixed assets of the Company given in the table below is
different from useful life prescribed in Schedule U of the Companies Act, 2013. Based on
the technical evaluation, the Company considers that the uséful life for respective agsets to
be appropriate.

Nature of Fixed Method of Management Useful Sif-ws per the  Useful life upto
Assety deprecistion Estimate of lienits presexibed in 31 March 2084
Yeefuil Life in Schedule I3 of the
yeurs Campasies Act, 2013
" in Years
Computirs Written down value 5 3 6
excluding
[ervers)
Plant and Written down value 5 8 51
Machincry 3
, J
All fiked assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of
purchiase.

2,10 Impairrment of assels

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired based on intemal/extornal factors. If any such indication exists, the
Company cstimates the recoverable amouni of the asset. If such reéoverable amount of the
asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs, is
less than its carrying smount, the carrying emount is reduced to its recaverable amount.

The reduction is treated a5 an impairment loss and is recogaizod in the statomoeni of profit
and loss. If at the balance sheet date, there is an indication that a previously asscssed
impairment loss no lenger exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is
reflected at the recoverable amourit subject to a maximum of thé depreciable historical
cost,

211  Foreign currency ironsactions

Forgign currency transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange pravailing on the date
of the transaction. Exchenge differcnces, if any arising out of transactions settled during
‘the year are recognised in the statemnent of profit and loss.

Monetary assets and lisbilities denominated in foreiga currencies as at the balande shect
date are translated at the closing exchange retes on that date. The exchange differences, if
any, are.recognised in the statement of profit and Joss and relatod assets and labilities are
accordingly restated in the balance sheet.

i
£,

ity
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2.

2,12

2,13

#

Siguificant accounting policies (Continued)

fnvesimenis

Investments that are readily realizeble and intended to be held for not more than a year
from the date of acquisition are classified as current investments. All other investiments are
classified as long-term investments. However, that part of long term investments which is
expected to be reafized within 12 months after the reporting date is also presented under
‘current assels” as  “current portion of long term investments™ in sccordance witly the
current / non-current classification under Schedule 111,

Long term investments sre carried at cost less diminution in value which is other than
lemporary, determined sepacately for each investment,

Current investments pre earried in the financial statements at Jower of ¢cost and fair valve
determined on an individual investment basis excapt for investments in the unifs of mutual
funds in the nature of current investments that bave been valned a1 the riet asset value
declared by the mutuslt fund in respect of each. particular scheme, in accordance with the
NBFC directions.

Emplayee benefits
Shorr — term emplayee benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services
are classified as shoni-term employee benefits. These benefits inchede salaries and wages;
bonus and ex-gratia. ‘The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid
in exchange for employee services i recogpised as an expense. as the related service is
rendered by employees.

Post employment benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards employee pravident. fund 1o
Governmens administered provident fund scheme which ig a defined contribution plan. The
Comypgny’s contribution is recognised as an expense in the statement. of profit and loss
durinyg the period in which the employee rendets the related service,

Defined benefit plan

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit pian, The Company’s net
obligation in respect of & Jdefined benefit plan is valculated by estimating the amount of
futuie benefit that employees have earnod in return for their service in the current and prior
periads; that benefft is discounted (0 détermine Hs present valiie, Any unrecogniscd past
ssrvice costs and the falr value of any plan assets are deduered. The caleulation of the
Company's ebligation under the plan is pecformed anmually by a qualified actuary using
the projected nnit oredit method.
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2.

213

2.14

215

2.6

217

Significant accounting policies (Continned)

Employee Benefits (Conlinued)

The Company recognises all actuarial gains and losses arising from defined benefit plans
immediately in the statement of profit and loss. All expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognised in employee benefits expense in the statement of profit and loss.
When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit rolated to
past service by employees i3 recognised in steteinent of profit and loss on a straight-line
basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. The Company recognises
gains and losses on the curtzilment or settlement of a defined bemefit plan wihcn the
curtailment or settlement docurs.

Compensated absences

Compensated absences balance upto 15 days are encashed at the end of financial year on
the basic salary. Encashment of more than 15 days of leave is not permitted. Leave balance
over 15 days will lapse at the end of financial year.

Borrowing cost

All barrowing costs are expansed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consists of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in-connection with the borrowing of funds,

Operating leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains. substantislly all the risks and rewards of
ownership over the lease tenm are elassified as operating leases. The total fease rentals in
respect of assets take on Operating Lease are charged to the staternent of profit and loss on
e straight line basis over the lease term.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the puipose of cash flow statement comprise cash in hand
and cash at bank and shore-term invesiments with an original maturity of three months or
less.

Taxation

Income tax expense comprisos current tax (f.e. amount of tax for the period determined in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961), deferred tax-charge or benefit (reflecting the
tux. offect of timing differences between accounting income snd taxable income for the
period).

Crrent iox

Provision for current tax is recognised based on estimated tax liability computed after
adjusting for allowances, disaliowances and exemptions in accordance with the tax laws
applicable.
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2.18

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation {Continued)

Deferred taxation

The deferred tax charge or benefit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities and assets
are recognized using the tax rates that have beon enacted or substantially enacted a5 at the
baiance sheet date. Deferred tax assets. are recogaised only to the extent there is reasonable
certainty that the asset can be realised in future, however, where there is unabsorbed
depreciation er carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised
only if theve is a virtual certainty of realisation of the asgets, Deferred tax assets are
reviewed as at each balance sheet date and writien down or written up 10 rellect the amount
that is reasonable/virtually.certain (as the case may be) 1o be realised.

Minimum dbernate Tax ((MAT)

MAT under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognized as current tax in the
statement of profit and foss. The credit evailable under the Tncome Tax Act, 1961 in
respect of MAT paid is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is
convinging evidence that the Company wifl pay normal income tax during the period for
which the MAT can be carried forward for set off against the normal tax liability, MAT
credit recoguized as an asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the
axtent the aforessid convinting evidence no longer exists.

Provistons and contingencies

The Company credtes a provision wlien there is present obligation as a result of 4 past
event that probably requires an ontflow of resources and 2 relidble estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. A disclosure for & contingpnt ligbility is made when there is &
possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an
outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect
of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is
made.

Loss contingencies arising from claims, litigations, assessment, fines, penalties etc are
recorded when it is probable that a Hability has besn incurred and the amount can be
reasonably estimated.

Provisiosis arc reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted te reflect the current best
estimate. If it is no longer probible that the outflow of resources would be required to
seitle the obligation, the provision Is reversed.

Contingept assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, contingent
assets are assessed comtinually sad if it is virtually cerain that an econcmic benefit will
arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the period in which the change ocours.
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A Significant accounting policies (Continued)

2,19 Earnings per share

The Company reports basic and diluted camnings per share in accordsnce with Accounting
Standard 20 - Eamings Per Share prescribed by the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
Basic eamings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after fax by the weighted
averdge number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential diluiion that could occur if seourities or
other contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year, Diluted
earnings per-share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by weighted average
number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.

&

o
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23. Notes to the accounts

23.1  Contingent linbilities

Particufars 2018 2017 |
I. Credit erhancements: provided by the Company towards asset 26,785,041 43,395,821
securitisation-in the form of tash colloterals
2. Credit enhancements provided by the-Company owards business 47,648,632 -
correspondent arrangoment in the fororef cash collaterals

23.2  Relared pardes

(A) Names of related parties where control exists
FINQ PayTech Limited (Holding Company)

Other related parties with whom transactions have taken place/subsisting
during the year

Fino Payments Bank Limited (Formerly known as Fifio. Fintech Limited) — Entity
undetr commeoen coutrol

Koy manzgement personnel

Mr. Rajeev Arora — Whole-time Director (Up to 31 August 2017 snd appointed
with effect from 01 January 2018)

Mz Rishi Gupta — Director (up to 62 May 2017)
Mr. Rishi Daulatani —~ CFO {with effect from 19 May 2017)

§53; Transactions with related party aud ontgtanding balznces:

Particulars 2018 2017

1. FINO PayTech Limited

Fquity shares izsucd {including seourities prémiving 149,995,987 -
Reimbursemenl of cipenses 12,502,593 48,778,155
Servies chames income - 5325220

2, Pioo Payments Bank Limited
Reimbursement of expenses R518,824 232382053
Service charges income 123,137,328 32622025

3. Fino Payments Baok Limited
Trade payabic - 37,809,322

4.  FINO PayTech Limited
Trade payable 61,836,901
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23.  Notes to the accounts (Continued)

23.3  Begment reporting

The main business of the Company is ta provide finance to poor women in rural arcas of
Indiz who are organised as Joint Liability Groups accordingly #t operates only in ond
business segment. Since the business operations of the Company are primarily
concentrated in India the Company Is congidered to operate enly in the domestic segment.

As the Company’s business activity falls within a sinple businass and geographic segment,
the financial statements are reflective of the hiformation required under Adcounting
Standard 17 on Segment Reporting notified by Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules
2004.

23.4  Eornings pershare

In accordance with Accounting Standard 20 om Bamings per Share issued by the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules 2006 the computation of earmings per share is
sct out below:

iR 017
“a}  Net profit atntbutable to equity sharcholders {420,063,254). 24045,101
b} Cafcrlation of weighted sverage number of Equity Shares of
Rs 10 ench:
~  Nusaber of shares at the beginning of the yeas 5,841,205 5.841.205
— Number of shares iSsued during the year 5,235,602 -
Uotal nurber of equify hares outstending «t the epd of the year 11,076,807 S.84§.205
Weighted average number of cquity shives outstanding during the 8,925,199 5,841,208
year {based on tha date of issuc of shires)
¢  Number of dilutive potential equity share £.925.190 5.841.205
d) Basic ewmnings per shere (I rupees) (a/h) (47,06} 0.35
¢ Dilued gamings per share {in rupces) (a/c) {47.06) 0.35
Foran
2! 'Q:}"' -
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23.  Notes to the accounts (Continued)

23.5  Deferved taxes

The primary components that gave rise to deferred tax liabilities and assets are as follows:

2018 2087
Beferred tax tiabitity
Tae effect.uf the fiming difference on accouns of
Unamortised guarnniee fees - §21.391
Depreciation on fixed assels - £32.749
Ciratuity snd compensated absences 445,807 S
445,807 1.654,140
Deferred tax asset
Tax effect of the tisiing difference on accourt of°
Provigion for lopn losses and doubtfut debts 17,082,985 24,058,797
Depreciation.on fixed assers &BTI155 -
Unamonisad gain on Securitisation radsaction 467,885 13.941.420:
34 430,025 38,000,217
Net deferred tax asset 33,984,218 36.346,077
23.6  Auwditor’s remuneration
2018 2017
Az aaditers
Stinnary audit 1,450,000 1,280,000
Reimburssnent of cxpenses 130,691 57,108
Totel 1,639,621 (1,347,108
23.7  Details of dues to miicro small and mediumy enterprises

The Ministry of Micro, Small and Mediwn Enterprises has issued an Office Memorandum
dated 26 Augast 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises should

mention in thelr correspondence with. its customers the Entreprencurs Memorandum -7

Number us allocated after filing of the Memorsndum. Based on the information available ,

with management, as at 31 March 2018, no dues were outstanding to micro and smally =

enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medinm Enterprises Development Act, ¢

2006, Further, the Compdny has not received any claim for inierest from any supplier ~\.: o

under the said Act £l 31 March 2018,
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23.

23.8

239

23.10

A)

B)

Notes to the accounts (Continued)

Expenvses in foreign currencies.

Expenses in foreign currenedes — Rs. Nii (Previpus Year: Rs. Nil)

Details of invesement in uniis of mutual funds

Opeding Purchase Sales
Qty Amount Qfy  Amount Qty Ampunt
Investments - £.155468.25 30283205 -~ ~  11535468.25 30,283,203
5Bl Corpormie
Bond Funds

Closing

Qty

Amount

Disclosure pursuani to Accounting Standiord 15 (Revised) - Employee Benefits

Pefined contribution plan (Provident fand):

Amount of Rs. 12,859,285 (previous Year: Rs. Nil) has been recognised as expenditure

and included under “Emplayee benefits” in the statement of profit and loss.
Defined benefit plan (Gratuity and Compensated abseaces):

The following tables summarize the companents of the net benefit expenses recognized in

the statement of piofit and loss and the funded status and amounts recognized in the
balance sheet for the gratuity benefit plan.

Statemient of profis and foss

» Net cinployee benefit expenses {recognized in employee benefit expense)

Current service cost

Intevest on  defined  bonefit
veligation

Expected refurst on plan assets
Net  aciuarinl  losses/i(gaing)
recngaized in the yedr

Pasi service cost

Actuarial (pain)/losses

Tatal included in Employes

benefit expense

Gratoity

2018

1,701,534
615,160

-

(2:943,150)

anmy

Compensated sheences

2418

2:421.702
314,794

.

(403,864)

2017

{626,456)

2,332,652
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23, Notes to the accounts (Continued)

23.1G Disclosure prrsuant to Accounting Standard 15 (Revised) - Employee benefits (Continued)
Balance sheet

= Details of provision for gratuity and compengated absences

Gratuity Compensaled
anhsences

m:a 2007 2018 057

1iability at tho end of the year 7,688,751 - 3881471 -

Fuir value of plan assets at the dnd of - - —
the year

Difference 7,688,751 - 3881471 -

Unrecogoieed past service gost — - - -

Unrecogoized wansiton fiability - - - -

Amoust in Balance Sheet 7,688,751 - ABRL4TE ’ -

LT T N ] TR LA

» Changes in the present value-of the defined berefit obligation are as follows.

Gratuity Compensated shsences

2018 2017 018 2017

Liakility at the beginning of thieyuir - — - -
{niorest cost 615160 -~ 314,794 -
Cuprenl sérvice 2ost 1,701,534 e 2,421,702 -
Past service cost {non vested benefis) — - — -
Past service coyt {vested benefity - - - -
Benefit paid (472,79%) - (2,948.240) -
Trinsferred Trom groop eadties 8,788,006 - 4,497,059 -
Actuarial (gain)ioss on obligations {2,943,150) o {403,844) A
Liabllity st the end of the yesr 7,688,751 - 3851470 -

s Principle actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date:

Gratuity Compensated
absences
2018 7 2018 2017
I3iscount rate current T.00% - 71.60% -
Salary escalation e S8% e 5.8% -
Eraplovees altrition male 16.60% - 36.00% -
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. 23, Notes to the accounts (Continued)
23.10 Disclosure pursuant to Acceunting Stapdard 15 (Revised) - Emplayee benefits (Contin ued)

Notes:

» The estimate of future sslary increases considered in actuerial valuation taken into
consideration inflation seniority promotien and vther relevant factors;

®  The desails of experience adjustments arising on account of plan Kabilities &as. required
by paragraph 120(n} (if} of AS 15 (Revised) on “Employee Benefils™ are not available
ag there were no employees in the Company till last year.

23.11  Other Expenses
Other expense includes expenses reimbursed 10 group entities as per the details below:

2018 2017
Expense Head Total Fino ~ Fino Tofal Fina Paymgnts Fina
Payments PayTach Bank Limited PayTeeh
Bank Limited (Formerdy known az Limited
Limited Fine Fhgeech
Liprited}
Travelling and .70 — 78,79% 29,203,617 29203017 -
conveyance
‘Techinology exponses - - - 20,868,087 . 20,868,087
Legal, professional £235,041 . - 5,225,041 149,161 149,161 -
mnd consuitiney
charges
Bank charges - - e 388,346 388.346
Hem 1357617 - 1,357,617 13211869 13,211,869 --
Cumnmunivation: cast 782,982 - 782,982 4431476 4,431,476 -
Printing and 74,096 - 74,006 2.804.646 2.864.646 -
statiohary
Llectsicity expenses 987,086 - SET.086 1,602,946 1,609,946 -
Repairs mnd 2,903,386 - 2,903,386 852,712 852,712
maindenance
Rates & thxes BBY,066 - BER,066. s - u—
Advertisement - - - 84,603 85,603 -
CXPENSES
Infrastructore cost — — - 3,134,050 o 3,134,030
Insurance —_ — om 109,013 1IU9.013 -
Membership & 364,956 - 364,956 - - -
subseription charges
Miscellaneous 337,193 -~ 337.193 2,387.288 2387288 -
EXPERSOS
Total 12,999.221 e 12,999,212 80,295,824 36.293.677 24,003,147

A
B
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23.  Notes to the accounts (Continued)

2312 Securvitization of louns;

During the year, the Corapany has soltd loans through direct securitisation. The information
on direet securitisation activity of the Company as an originator is as shown below:

Particalars 2018 W7
Towl pomber of lpans securitisad - 33,032
‘Fotal book value of loans scouritised - 494,47 BRG.
Sale considermion recoived for loans seouritised ~ 546,952,193
Invome recognised in the statement of profh and loss ' 39,997,550 44,349 356

Credit enhencement provided dnd gutstanding (Gross):
Cash calisleral 16,785,841 45.395,821

23.13  Disclosure in terms of RBI's revised guideilines on securitivation transuctions as per

para 1:6.2
§. No. Particulars No, f Amount
1 No of 82Vs sponsored by the NBYFC for seouriization ttensactiony 4
2 ‘Total armount of sceuritized essets a3 per books of the SPVs sponsored by the (86,019,519
NB¥C
3 Totd ambunt of exposures riained by the NBFC 1o vomply with MRR, #s an 26,785,041
ihe date of balanee shweor
a)  OIf-balanct shest exposures
*  Fiestloss -
% Others -
B On-balance sheet exposures
& First losy 26,785,041
2 Others -~
4 Amocunt of exposures to seowritization transactions viber than MRR il

#)  Off-balance sheel exposures
i}  Exposuicto own scouritizations;

¥ Firg foss
* oss
it) Exposure to thind party sscuritizations
* Fintloss
¥ Others

b)  Onebalanoe sheot oxposunes
i} Exposwe1ovwa socuritizatipns
¥ First loss
*  {rthers
i} Exposure w il party sceusitizations
+  First loss
* Others
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23.  Notes to the accounts (Continued)

23.14  Credit defoult swaps

In accordance with Master Direction No. DNBR.PD.007/03.10.119/2016-17 daied
01/09/2016 isswed by Reserve Bank of India on Non-Banking Financiai Company —Non-
Systemicaily Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016,
the Company did not enter into any credit default swaps during the year ended 31 March
2018 (Previous Year: Rs: Nib

23.15  Giid loan jeweilery

In accordance with Master Direction No. DNBR.PD.O07/03.10,119/2016-17- dated.

01/09/2016 issued by Reserve Bark of India on Non-Banking Financial Company ~Non-
Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016,
the Coinpany has not lenl against gold jewellery during the year ended 31 March 201%
(Previous Year: Rg. Nil)

23.16 Disclosares interms gf regulation 18 of Moster direction

Disclosures in terms of regulation 18 of RBI Master Direction No. DNBR.PD.
007/03.10.119/2016-17 dated 01/09/2016 is attached in. Annexure 1.

23,17 Information on net interest margin dwring the year:

Pariiculars For the year For the year
ended voded

31 March ZORE 31 March. 2017

Average interest-(a) 331% 33.31%:
Average effective cost of borrowiog (6) 14.49% 16.08%-
MNet interest margin (a-b) 8.68% 7.23%

23.18  Details of Specified Bank Notes (SBN) held and transacted during the period from
Beit November 2016 to 301 Decimher 2016:

Particelars SBNs  Other deaominstion Tutal
naotes

Closing ¢ash in hand as on 08 November 2016 - - 0,707,482

{+} Permitted recelprs e - -

{=) Peraiitied puyments -, s -
{=) Aunoun deposited in Banks — s -
Closing cashi in hand g on 36 Diecentber 2016 o e 14.669.834

Now: In addition io clesing cash in hund as on 08 November 2016, the Company deposited Rs. 450,714,759
Quring this period, which inclodes SBN and Other Denominations bot due:to lack of information, thc b u;pan}
18 unable to provide scgregation between SBN and other denominetions.

v--.-(_ﬁ ,.mv"
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23.18  Terms and conditions of privately placed redeemable non-convertible debentures

Name

Takne Date | Maturity | Noof Rate | Repayment Asat Awat
) Date NCD's 31 March 2018 | 31 Muarch 2047
[T Finance Linmted
i 30-8ep-16 | 03-Apr-i8 200 | 12.00% | Montily 50,000,000 -
Ilincduja Leyland Finanee '
Linited 14-Oct-16 13-Apr-i8 150 | 12.16% | Morithly 43,750,050 ==
Pettertoar Effocienbewaarbedriif
, NV.DR 26-Aug-16 | 26-Sen-22 | 2086 | 14,30% | Bullet 298,600,060 298,600,000
[ TFMR Fimpaet Long Term Multi
Agset Class Fund 09-Jum-16. | __05-Jun-22 150 | 14.90% | Bullet 150,000,000 150,004,000
IFMR Fimpact Medivm Term
Micre Finanee Fund 10-Jun-16 30-hm-19 100G | 14.50% | Ballet 104,000,000 140,000,000
Mahindra & Mahindra Financial
Serviges Limited 25-Avg-15 | 28-Aug-17 80 | 13.00% | Monthly - 16,666,720
Aditva Bista Finance Limited 21-Sep-15 28-Sop-17 100 | 13.00% | Monthly - 25,000,000
Hinduja Leyland Floanee
Limited 30-8ep-15 28.5ep37 F13 § 13.02% | Monthly -~ 28,750,000
timduja Leyland Finance
| Limited 27-Feb-16 27-Feb-18 100 | 12.78% | Monihly = 45,833,400
E&T Finance Limited 1
30-Sep-16 | 03-Apre17 | 200 | 12.00% | Momthly - 150,000,000
tHinduja Levlam Finaoce !
_Limited 14-0ct-16 | 13-Aprl? 150 | 12,16% | Mosathly - 118.750.050
642,350,050 933,600,170
Luss : Current niaturities of nen-cenyertible debentures 93,756,050 282516720
Long term-pgortion of privately pisced vedeemable wvon-corvertible debenture 543,604,000 651,683,450

23.20 Prior year comparatives

Previbus year figures have been regroupad and reclassified wherever necessary to confirm
10 current year’s presentation.

For B 8. R & Associates LLF

Chartered Accowntanis

Firm's Registration No: 11623 1W/W-100024

Ritesh Goyal
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Membership No: 115007

Mumbai
23 May 2018
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For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
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Schedule to the Balance Sheet of « NBFC

Annexure |

{Currency: Indian Rupees)

Particulars

LiabHities side

Amoust
Oufstanding Amount Overdue

(1)

Loans

and advanees aveiled by the nonbanking financisl company

inclusive of interest accrued theveon brat uot paid @

(z)

Debentires |- Scoured

: Unsecured
(other than falling within the meaning of public
deposits*)

$44,572,824 -

250,060,000 .

{b)

Deferred Credits

(<)

Terin Loans

3.225,547.870 -

{d)

Inter-cotporate loans and borrowing

{e)

Comeneseial Paper

)]

Public Deposits*

{g)

Other. Loens {specify nature)

* Please sec Mote § helow

471,746,261 -

)

Break-up of (1M above (Oulstanding public deposits Inclusive of
interest necrued thereon but not paid) :

&)

In the fomu of Unssoured debentures

(

In the form of purtly secured debentures i.6. debentures where
there iy a shortfzll in the value of security

(e

Other public deposits

* Plense see Note | below

Assets Side

Amount Outstanding

16

Break-up of Loans and Advances inglading bills réceivables [other
thar those ingluded in (4) balow] :

{a} |Sscured 55,748,081
(b} {Unsecured 4 614,648,297
{4} |Break up of Leased Assets and stock on bire and other assety

couniing towards AFC activities

(1) |Lease assets ineluding lease rentals onder sundry debtors ©

(2) Financial lease -

{b) Operdting leaze -
(i) {Stock by hire including hire charges under sunidry debtors ©

(a) Assets on hire

) Repossessed Assets -
(it]y {Other loans counting towards AFC activities

() Loans where assets have been repossesied

{by _ |Loans other thay (a)-above.




Schedule to the Balnnce Shoet of u NBFC

Annexisre 1

{Currency: Indian Rupces)

Particulars i
(6) iBorrower group-wise classification ol ussets financed as in (3) and (4)-above :
Plense see Note 2 below
Catogory Amounnt net of provisions
Secured Unsecured Total
1. [Related Partigs **
(a) Substdiaries - T -
()] Companies in the same group - - -
{c) Orher related partios - - -
2. tOther than related parties 55,748,681 4.614,648,207 4.670,395,379
Total £5,748,081 } 4,614,648,297 4,674,396,379
(1) [lnvestor group-wise classification of sll investments (¢erront and long terni) in shares and securities (hoth
quoted and unquoted) :
Please see nofe 3 helow
Categary Market Value / Beok Value (Net of
Break up or Fair Provisions)-
Vialue ar NAV
b, |Related Parties **
(a}  |Subsidiaries - -
(b} Companies in the same group - .
{¢) Other related parties - .
2. Other thag related parties - -
Tatal - -
** As por Accounting Standard of YCAI (Please see Nojs 3)
() Other Infdérmation .
Particulars Arniount
(i} _|Gross Non-Performing Assets
(z) Related pasties -
(b) Cther than relatéd parties 131,782,256
{ii) |Net Mon-Performing Asseis
(a) Related parties -
{b) Othier than related parties =
(i} 1Assets acquiced fn satisfaction of debt -
Notes ¢
1. _]As defined In point xix of paragraph 3 of Chapter -2 of these Directions.
2. |Provisioming norms shall bé applicable as prescribed in these Directidns,
3

All Accounting Standards and Guidance Wotes issued by ICAT are: applicable including for valuation of Investmenss
and other assets g also ussets acquired In satisfaction of debt. However, market valie o regpect of quoted
investments and break up / fair value / NAV in respect of unquoted investments shail be disclosed irrespective of
whether they are classifizd as long term of current in (5} above.
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